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Dear Mr Hutson, 
  
APPLICATION BY HIGHWAYS ENGLAND FOR AN ORDER GRANTING 

DEVELOPMENT CONSENT FOR THE A47 BLOFIELD TO NORTH BURLINGHAM 
SCHEME (TR010040) 

 
Deadline 4a 
 

We refer to the Examining Authority's letter of 21 September in relation to the 
Applicant’s request for a non-material change to the above Scheme (NMC Request) 

and the Examining Authority’s invitation for comments. 
 
Revised masterplan 

 
In developing the revised Masterplan (REP4-037) consideration was given to a worst 

case scenario for developing the Cadent block valve site to allow a robust review of 
environmental implications.  This resulted in an over-estimation of the area of 
woodland to be removed.  The area required for the block valve (20m x 20m) allows 

space for the block valve equipment and vehicular access.  This is the area shown 
as amenity grassland on the Masterplan (REP4-037) and the area to the north 

should be shown as existing vegetation to be retained.  The Masterplan will be 
amended accordingly and submitted at Deadline 5.  
 

The proposed change for the block valve does result in a slightly greater impact on 
the woodland but, following a review of the anticipated impacts and proposed 

mitigation, the conclusions of the residual effect presented in the Environmental 
Statement do not change.  
 

Proposed siting of the new block valve and location of an oak tree 
 

The oak tree falls within the area of tree group G13 (Mixed Native and naturalised) in 
the Arboricultural Impact Assessment (ES Appendix 7.7) (REP1-036).  This group 
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was identified for partial removal, with the impact and recommended actions as 
below:  

 
‘Fell section in conflict Scheme and protect remainder with temporary barriers 

in accordance with BS5837:2012. 83% of group retained’. 
 
The assessment covered the route of the pipeline and a greater degree of tree 

removal will be required for the block valve.  The recommended actions will however 
remain the same although the percentage of trees to be retained will be decreased.  

The conclusions of the assessment remain robust. 
 
The REAC within the EMP (REP4-040) secures a robust strategy and sequence of 

mitigating measures in relation to the above (i.e. LV2 – arboricultural surveys, B1 – 
preconstruction surveys, and B7 for vegetation clearance). 

 
Compliance with s123 of the Planning Act 2008 
 

In our letter dated 30 September to the Examining Authority Highways England set 
out the reasons as to why, in relation to the NMC Request it was considered that 

s123(2) of the Planning Act is engaged: 
 
Highways England remains of the view that the relatively minor amendments 

proposed by the NMC Request do not invoke the CA Regulations. 
  

Section 123 of the Planning Act 2008 (2008 Act) states: 
  

(1)     An order granting development consent may include provision authorising 

the compulsory acquisition of land only if the [Secretary of State] is 
satisfied that one of the conditions in subsections (2) to (4) is met. 

(2)     The condition is that the application for the order included a request for 
compulsory acquisition of the land to be authorised. 

(3)     The condition is that all persons with an interest in the land consent to the 

inclusion of the provision. 
(4)     The condition is that the prescribed procedure has been followed in 

relation to the land. 
 
Highways England considers that Section 123(2) is engaged as: 

 
1 It is acknowledged that the NMC Request would result in the permanent 

acquisition of some "rights" land, and the acquisition of rights over a small 
parcel of land over which previously only temporary possession was 
sought. 

2 That does not alter the fact that the Application (as submitted) did include 
a request for compulsory acquisition powers over the land to which the 

NMC Request relates. 
3 The extent to which compulsory purchase was authorised was limited by 

the draft DCO, and the way it was shown on the Land Plans and described 

in the Book of Reference.  That does not change the fact that compulsory 
acquisition powers were sought over the land. 



 

 
 

Registered office Bridge House, 1 Walnut Tree Close, Guildford GU1 4LZ 

Highways England Company Limited registered in England and Wales number 09346363 

 
Classification L2 - Business Data 

4 This interpretation is consistent with the CA Regulations which contain the 
prescribed procedure for the compulsory acquisition of additional land (see 

regulation 4) referred to in Section 123(4) of the 2008 Act.  Regulation 2(1) 
of the CA Regulations defines "additional land" as "land which it is 

proposed shall be subject to compulsory acquisition and which was not 
identified in the book of reference submitted with the application as land". 

 

In summary our view remains that the land to which the NMC Request relates was 
included in the Book of Reference as land and that the CA Regulations are not 

therefore invoked.  
 
Notwithstanding the above, if the Examining Authority does not agree with our 

conclusions, compliance with the CA Regulations at this stage of the examination is 
very challenging from a timetabling perspective.  Included as an Annex to this letter 

is a draft timetable setting out how compliance with the Regulations might be 
achieved. 
 

We are therefore taking some preliminary steps to comply with the CA Regulations in 
order to streamline the process in the event that the Examining Authority does not 

agree with the conclusions as set out above. 
 
Updated Compulsory Acquisition Schedule 

 
Enclosed with this letter is an updated CA Schedule (TR010040/EXAM/9.4 Rev 5). 

 

 
Yours sincerely, 

Nikki Rowley-Todd  
Project Manager  

Highways England 
 


















